Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Improving People’s Lives

Charitable Trust Board

Date: Tuesday 9th December 2025
Time: 2.00 pm
Venue: The Counting House Room - Guildhall, Bath

Councillors: Councillor Sarah Warren, Councillor Oli Henman, Councillor Samantha Kelly,
Councillor Paul May and Councillor Robin Moss

Chief Executive and other appropriate officers
Press and Public

Corrina Haskins
Democratic Services
Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BA1 1JG

Telephone: 01225 394357
Web-site - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk
E-mail: Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk




NOTES:
1. Inspection of Papers: Papers are available for inspection as follows:

Council’s website: https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1

2. Details of decisions taken at this meeting can be found in the minutes which will be
circulated with the agenda for the next meeting. In the meantime, details can be obtained by
contacting as above.

3. Recording at Meetings:-

The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now allows filming and recording
by anyone attending a meeting. This is not within the Council’s control. Some of our meetings
are webcast. At the start of the meeting, the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is to
be filmed. If you would prefer not to be filmed for the webcast, please make yourself known to
the camera operators. We request that those filming/recording meetings avoid filming public
seating areas, children, vulnerable people etc; however, the Council cannot guarantee this will
happen.

The Council will broadcast the images and sounds live via the internet
www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast. The Council may also use the images/sound recordings on its
social media site or share with other organisations, such as broadcasters.

4. Public Speaking at Meetings

The Council has a scheme to encourage the public to make their views known at meetings.
They may make a statement relevant to what the meeting has power to do. They may also
present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a group.

Advance notice is required not less than two full working days before the meeting. This
means that for meetings held on Thursdays notice must be received in Democratic
Services by 5.00pm the previous Monday.

Further details of the scheme can be found at:

https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=12942

5. Emergency Evacuation Procedure

When the continuous alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building by one of the designated
exits and proceed to the named assembly point. The designated exits are signposted.
Arrangements are in place for the safe evacuation of disabled people.

6. Supplementary information for meetings

Additional information and Protocols and procedures relating to meetings

https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13505



https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=12942
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13505

Charitable Trust Board - Tuesday 9th December 2025
at 2.00 pm in The Counting House Room - Guildhall, Bath

AGENDA

1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS
2. EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

The Chair will draw attention to the emergency evacuation procedure as set out on the
Agenda.

3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTION
4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

At this point in the meeting declarations of interest are received from Members in any
of the agenda items under consideration at the meeting. Members are asked to
indicate:

(a) The agenda item number in which they have an interest to declare.
(b) The nature of their interest.

(c) Whether their interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest or an other interest,
(as defined in Part 4.4 Appendix B of the Code of Conduct and Rules for
Registration of Interests)

Any Member who needs to clarify any matters relating to the declaration of interests is
recommended to seek advice from the Council’s Monitoring Officer or a member of his
staff before the meeting to expedite dealing with the item during the meeting.

5. TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR

The Chair will announce any items of urgent business accepted since the agenda was
prepared under the Access to Information provisions.

6. ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC - TO RECEIVE STATEMENTS, PETITIONS OR
QUESTIONS

7. FRANCES GEORGINA COOKE CHARITY (4, THE CIRCUS) - APPOINTMENT OF
TRUSTEES (Pages 5 - 20)

The Democratic Services Officer for this meeting is Corrina Haskins who can be contacted on
01225 394357.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING | Charitable Trust Board
MEETING
9 December 2025
DATE
TITLE: To report to the CTB the investigation into the Charity of Frances Georgina
' Cooke (charity number 266101) re No.4 Circus
WARD: Kingsmead

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:

Appendix 1: Briefing note ‘4 Circus and the Charity of Frances Georgina Cooke’ (2025)

1 THE ISSUE

1.1 The Council created the Charitable Trust Board to discharge its functions in
respect of charities for which it is the sole corporate trustee to ensure the clear
separation of the Council’s interest as sole trustee of those charities and the
Council’s interests as a Local Authority.

1.2 The Charity of Frances Georgina Cooke (charity number 266101) is a charity
that owns No.4 The Circus. The Scheme of arrangement for the charity
provides for 4 trustees. Additional trustee appointments are required as none
are currently appointed. This will allow the Trust to settle final financial
obligations and allow the Trust to appropriately dispose of the property and be
wound up.

1.3 The Trust has operated minimally to date, and the Trust is not fulfilling its
charitable objects. The inability of the Trust to finance the maintenance of the
property makes it unlikely that the Trustees would ever be able to fulfil the
objects of the Trust. The Trustees would look to dispose of the property either
to an organisation who will better fulfil the Charitable objectives of the trust or
to sell the property on the open market. Once the property has been sold, the
Trustees would seek to pay the funds to an organisation with similar objects.
Both routes would then enable the closure of the Trust.

1.4 The Council is often required, or invited, to nominate or appoint councillors to
act as trustees on the boards of local charities. such appointments can be
beneficial, promoting collaboration between the council and the charitable
sector, and supporting the discharge of public functions. however, trusteeship

Page 5




1.5

1.6

2.2

41

3.2

5

may expose councillors to personal liability in the event of breach of trust or
other claims arising out of their role as trustees.

The councils may, under certain circumstances, provide indemnities to protect
their councillors from personal liability. it is important for the council to ensure
that any indemnity offered is legally compliant, does not conflict with the duties
that apply to charity trustees, and is clear in scope and effect.

It is in the Council’s interest to finalise any dilapidations case with the Trust
and ensure that the charity can be wound up, as noted above, provided that
this is undertaken with the Charity Commissions approval and agreement.

RECOMMENDATION

To request the Board to agree to the nomination of four Council members to
be appointed as trustees with the purpose of supporting the dissolution of the
charity (nominations to be provided by political groups in due course).

To delegate to the Monitoring Officer the power to negotiate with lawyers
acting for the Council Members appointed as Trustees and to provide a
Council indemnity to those members on the terms of that indemnity.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE)

The Frances Georgina Cooke Charity is a registered Charity. Its only asset is
the property No.4 The Circus but it has no other resources. It is an established
charity with trustees nominated by the Council. The Charity will continue to be
resourced and supported by officers to undertake these functions.

The property is managed by Heritage Services and in 2024/25, total property
costs came to £18,606.15. Maintenance is undertaken through the Council’s
Project Delivery Team and in 2025 this cost will be circa £6,500 as no major
works are required. With the end of the Council’s lease of the property in 2019,
dilapidations and repair liability has not been settled between the Trust and the
Council.

STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS AND BASIS FOR PROPOSAL

Under the Local Authorities (Indemnities for Members and Officers) Order 2004

(the “Indemnities Order”), councils may provide indemnities to their members

and officers when acting in connection with the discharge of their functions. The

indemnity may cover:

e Legal costs in defending proceedings brought against the member or officer

e Liability incurred in relation to such proceedings, subject to certain
exclusions (e.g., criminal acts, fraud, or deliberate wrongdoing)

However, indemnity cannot cover liabilities arising from deliberate wrongdoing,
fraud, or recklessness.

THE REPORT

Page 6



5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

No.4 Circus is a mid-eighteenth-century town house set within the south-west
segment of the Circus, the first of the three segments to be built. It was
designed by John Wood the Elder (who died in 1754 before its completion)
and built by his son John Wood the Younger. No.4 was completed in 1760.
The house is Grade | listed. It was recently featured on the David Olusuga
series for the BBC ‘Empire’ which noted its initial occupation by people with
wealth derived from transatlantic enslavement and the plantation economy.

In 1958 Mr. Charles Allan Cooke and his wife Frances Georgina Cooke made
mutual wills leaving their house, 4 Circus, to the survivor for life and, thereafter,
to the Bath Preservation Trust (BPT). In 1960 Mr. Cooke died. At odds with the
intention set out in the mutual wills signed by the Cookes, Mrs. Cooke
approached Bath City Council (BCC) with a view to the Council taking over 4
Circus to make it available to the general public and, in particular, as a
Georgian exhibition house. Discussions took place between BCC and BPT as
to the situation which would arise on Mrs. Cooke’s death and whether BPT
would be prepared to take the house on lease from BCC for the use intended
by her late husband. BPT eventually decided that it would not contest the
passing of the house to BCC and renounced all claim on it, particularly as they
had recently acquired the more suitable No.1 Royal Crescent to develop as a
Georgian exhibition house.

In 1970 Mrs. Cooke died. In the absence of a joint scheme between BCC and
BPT to realise the wishes of her late husband, the matter passed to the Official
Custodian for Charities. In December 1973 the Charity Commissioners for
England and Wales (‘the Charity Commission’) published a Scheme for a
charity in the name of Frances Georgina Cooke.

The Charity Commission’s Scheme requires the Council to appoint up to four
trustees to the Charity. The trustees need not be, but invariably are, elected
members of the local authority. The most recent trustees, all elected members
of this authority, were:

- Councillor Paul Crossley;
- Councillor Susan Craig;

- Councillor Alison Born;

- Councillor Dine Romero.

Councillor Susan Craig was not returned to the Council after the May 2023
elections. Councillors Crossley, Born and Romero remain members of the
Council however, the charity’s governing document stipulates that trustees
only serve for up to four years before they are re-nominated or replaced. Their
term limits have all expired.

New trustees need to be in place to approve and manage the disposal of the
property and dissolution of the charity. One of the first tasks that the trustees
will need to undertake is the procurement of a dilapidations survey and
property valuations. One valuation based on the value of the property in a state
of repair and the second valuation based on the property in its existing
condition.

Page 7



6 RATIONALE

6.1 There is no requirement to create a sub-committee to manage the Frances
Georgina Cooke Charity. The charity is currently managed pursuant to the
Charity Commission’s Scheme; it can demonstrate that the Council is not a
sole corporate trustee and the assets of the Trust are separately managed
from the assets of the Council. However, the Charity does require new trustees
to be nominated by the Council to provide continuity for the Charity and for
those nominated councillors to be appointed by the Trust and indemnified by
the Council in undertaking that role.

7 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
7.1 None.
8 CONSULTATION

8.1 The monitoring Officer, Michael Hewitt and acting Deputy s151 Officer, Gary
Adams, have been consulted during the preparation of this report.

9 RISK MANAGEMENT

9.1 A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been
undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision-making risk
management guidance.

Contact person Robert Campbell, Managing Director, Culture & Heritage

Background papers | FGC Scheme 1973

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an alternative
format

Page 8




Appendix 1

Briefing Note:
4 Circus and the Charity of Frances Georgina Cooke (charity number 266101)
August 2013

4 Circus is a mid-eighteenth-century town house set within the south-west segment
of the Circus, the first of the three segments to be built. It was designed by John Wood
the Elder (who died in 1754 before its completion) and built by his son John Wood
the Younger. No.4 was completed in 1760. The house is Grade | listed.

1 BACKGROUND TO THE CHARITY

1.1 In 1958 Mr. Charles Allan Cooke and his wife Frances Georgina Cooke
made mutual wills leaving their house, 4 Circus, to the survivor for life
and, thereafter, to the Bath Preservation Trust (BPT).

1.2 In 1960 Mr. Cooke died. At odds with the intention set out in the mutual
wills signed by the Cookes, Mrs. Cooke approached Bath City Council
(BCC) with a view to the Council taking over 4 Circus to make it
available to the general public and, in particular, as a Georgian
exhibition house.

1.3 Discussions took place between BCC and BPT as to the situation which
would arise on Mrs. Cooke’s death and whether BPT would be prepared
to take the house on lease from BCC for the use intended by her late
husband. BPT eventually decided that it would not contest the passing of
the house to BCC and renounced all claim on it, particularly as they had
recently acquired the more suitable No.1 Royal Crescent to develop as a
Georgian exhibition house.

1.4 BCC considered converting the house for housing purposes but decided
that it would be better used as a much-needed adjunct to the Museum of
Costume which, at that time, lacked space in the Assembly Rooms for
storage, public research and study purposes.

1.5 In 1970 Mrs. Cooke died. In the absence of a joint scheme between
BCC and BPT to realise the wishes of her late husband, the matter
passed to the Official Custodian for Charities. In December 1973 the
Charity Commissioners for England and Wales (‘the Charity
Commission’) published a Scheme for a charity in the name of Frances
Georgina Cooke.

2 THE CHARITY OF FRANCES GEORGINA COOKE

2.1 The Charity Commission’s scheme required the Council to appoint up to
four trustees to the charity. These do not have to be elected members of
the local authority, but to date, invariably have been. At the time of
writing, the trustees are:

- Councillor Paul Crossley;

Page 9



- Councillor Susan Craig;
- Councillor Alison Born;
- Councillor Dine Romero.

2.2 The Trust’s sole asset is No. 4 The Circus. It has no funds or staff of its
own and is wholly administered by the Council which maintains the
building.

2.3 The Object of the Charity is:

“The preservation and exhibition to the public of the building on
the said land as a place of architectural and historic interest.”

2.4 The Trust’s sole asset is No. 4 The Circus. It has no funds or staff of its
own and is wholly administered by the Council which maintains the
building.

2.5 A Scheme drawn up by the Charity Commission in 1973 permitted the
Trustees to grant a lease to BCC

“For purposes not inconsistent with the Object of the Charity
which purposes may include use as a museum of costume.”

2.6 In March 1976 a lease was granted to BCC for a period of twenty-one
years.

3 THE USE OF 4 THE CIRCUS BY THE COUNCIL

3.1 In 1995 the contractual term of the original lease expired. The Council,
which became Bath and North East Somerset Council (B&NES) the
following year, continued to occupy the building under the terms of that
lease on the usual basis of security of tenure for business leases.

3.2 In 1998 the Charity Commission created a new Scheme for the Charity
and, in 2003, a new twenty-one-year lease was granted to B&NES.

3.3 Also, in 2003 the FRC's collections and services were merged with those
of the Museum of Costume at the Assembly Rooms. This released
space at 4 Circus and the search started for a partner tenant whose
function would be compatible with that of the Museum and consistent
with the Object of the Charity.

3.4 In 2019, B&NES'’ lease of the property expired and was not renewed.
4 USE OF 4 THE CIRCUS BY BATH SPA UNIVERSITY (BSU)

4.1 In 2003 discussions took place between Heritage Services and BSU
(then Bath Spa University College) to explore the feasibility of a working
partnership between the Museum of Costume and BSU in the delivery of
a new BA course in Fashion Design Skills.

Page 10



4.2 In the same year a three-year lease for the ground floor and basement
of 4 Circus was awarded by the Council to BSU. The Museum of
Costume remained in control of the upper floors which were used in
particular for the storage of collections for which there was no space
available at the Assembly Rooms. Rental income helped serve the
Object of the Charity, i.e. the preservation of the building. The then
Trustees agreed with the proposal but were concerned to ensure that
the Object of the Charity should still be met as far as was possible.

4.3 The use of parts of the building for teaching the Fashion Design Skills
course was deemed to be in keeping with the Object of the Charity in
that it made the building accessible to BSU students and staff. In
addition, the house was opened for accompanied public viewing at
certain times of year such as National Heritage Open Days. In theory
members of the public could request sight of the interior at any time and
would have to be admitted, although the ability to do this has never been
made public.

4.4 Under these working arrangements, the Fashion Museum Manager
would teach a given number of hours per week on the course, for which
the Council would be paid by BSU. In return the students would enjoy
privileged access to the Museum’s collections for the purposes of study
and handling.

4.5 BSU was keen to consolidate the partnership under a Memorandum of
Co-operation as this would attract funding for the Fashion Design Skills
course. In October 2004 a three-year Memorandum of Co-operation was
signed by Frank Morgan, the Director and Chief Executive of Bath Spa
University College, and Councillor Nicole O’Flaherty, the Council’s
Executive Member for Tourism, Leisure and Culture.

4.6 In subsequent years a further lease permitted BSU to occupy all of the
first floor and some rooms on the second floor was awarded by the
Council. The Fashion Museum retained its stores on the second and top
floors, both out of necessity and to retain a foothold in the building for
the Council as a means of fulfilling its duty of care for it.

4.7 Upon the expiry of the Memorandum of Co-operation in 2007, further
discussions took place with the intention of signing a new agreement. A
new Memorandum was drawn up in December 2009 but a combination
of staff turnover in BSU and protracted negotiations over a new lease
between the Council and BSU meant that by 2013 it had not been
signed.

4.8 In 2019, BSU vacated the premises when the Council lease came to an
end. Dilapidations between BSU and B&NES were agreed and settled.

5 COMPLIANCE WITH THE OBJECT OF THE CHARITY

Page 11



5.1 A recurring discussion amongst the Trustees has been the extent to
which the activities taking place within the property fulfil the Object of the
Frances Georgina Cooke Trust. To recap, the Object of the Charity is:

“The preservation and exhibition to the public of the building on

the said land as a place of architectural and historic interest."

5.2 Throughout the fifty years of the Council’s responsibility for the
administration of the Charity, fulfilling the Object has only been achieved
in part.

5.3 The “preservation” element of the responsibility has been discharged
satisfactorily, and the building has been subject to the same high
standards of care afforded by the Council to its own historic properties
through its professional building surveyors. The house has been
maintained and subjected to the same inspection and testing regimes as
the Council’'s own historic buildings. Since its excavation and
reinstatement, the garden has been much better cared for than it was
when the Council first assumed responsibility for the property.

5.4 The “exhibition to the public of the building as a place of architectural
and historic interest" has been altogether more challenging. The interiors
of the houses in the Circus vary considerably and no.4 is one of the
more austere examples, with few internal architectural features of note.
It does not bear comparison with the size and grandeur of Bath
Preservation Trust’'s No.1 Royal Crescent which, throughout the period
in question, has provided Bath with an excellent example of a furnished
eighteenth-century town house. Nor has the Council had the collections
furniture and fine and decorative arts with which to adorn the interior.
Moreover, the William Herschel Museum at 19 New King Street, also run
by BPT, presents another opportunity to see the interior of a period town
house.

5.5 When the house was used as the Fashion Research Centre there was a
regular traffic of students and researchers through the building. They
were able to enjoy the large first-floor rooms which are the most ornate
in the building.

5.6 The tall, narrow nature of the house compounds the problems of
accessibility that are encountered when considering ways of making it
available to public view on a regular basis. Its Grade | listing would be
likely to preclude the drastic measures needed to provide step-free
access both to the basement and to the upper floors. Even if it were
possible, in 2016, the estimated cost of such access measures,
combined with the cost of furnishing and interpreting the house, was in
the region of £300,000 to £500,000. A 2025 estimate would likely reflect
a vast increase. Without provision for full accessibility, a scheme to
convert the house for use as a visitor attraction would be ineligible for
funding from the Heritage Lottery Fund.

Page 12



5.7 The most successful element of the “exhibition to the public” requirement
has been the developing and opening to the public of the Georgian
Garden. More generally this has been a major addition to the public
understanding of the eighteenth-century city, and it complements the
furnished house at No.1 Royal Crescent nearby very well. The garden
provides the visitor with the opportunity to observe the rear elevation of
the house and its neighbours, and it demonstrates the practical role of
Gravel Walk in the later eighteenth century.

5.8 No. 4 The Circus is always included in the annual Heritage Open Days
scheme. This is a nation-wide scheme which arranges public access to
buildings not normally open to the public. It was a requirement of the
lease with BSU that the house was included in the programme each
year. BSU staff were aware that, in the unlikely event that a member of
the public asked to look around the house, that they should have been
allowed to do so.

5.9 Nevertheless, despite these measures the “exhibition to the public”
requirement remains difficult to achieve.

5.10 Legal advice to the Trustees over the years has advised them that
the previous arrangements were only tangentially compliant with the
Object of the Charity. As the previous principle lesee of the Charity, the
Council’'s foothold in the property through collection storage and regular
staff visits that they necessitate was an important means of retaining a
practical interest in the house and discharging the Council’s
responsibility towards it. However, this has no longer been the case
since 2019.

6 SUMMARY OF CURRENT POSITION

6.1 The Council remains responsible to the Trustees for the upkeep of the
building. Rent from BSU mitigated, but did not completely cover, the
running costs. The property, including the Georgian Garden, costs the
Council circa £25,000pa excluding building insurance which is covered
under the Council Block policy

6.2 The Council manages the Georgian Garden through its Heritage
Services and Parks & Open Spaces teams. The Council retains a
presence in the building through inspections and repairs organised by
Heritage Service’s Operations staff and through the Corporate Estate

6.3 BSU had a lease on the basement, ground and first floors and part of the
second floor. The lease has expired and BSU have vacated the
premises.

6.4 The Charity Commission Scheme of 1973, referred to again in the 2003
lease, permits the Trustees to lease 4 Circus to the Council

“For purposes not inconsistent with the Object of the Charity
which purposes may include use as a museum of costume”

Page 13



6.5 The current arrangement is no longer compliant with these purposes as
BSU, and the Fashion Museum no longer have a presence in the
building.

6.6 The Council has a duty to reinstate the property pursuant to its
obligations for dilapidations during the period of its occupancy. The
estimated cost for a full remediation, based on a survey conducted in
August 2017 was £291,430. A new survey will need to be procured to
bring this figure up to date.

Page 14



Sealed 5th December 1973

402(S) County - Somerset.
7ET City - Bath.
Charity - Frances Georgina Cooke.
L2.
150, 990.
Stamp £1 Scheme including appointment of

Trustees and vesting in Official
Custodian for Charities.

CHARITY COMMISSTION.

In the matter of the Charity of Frances Georgina
Cooke, in the City of Bath; and
In the matter of the Charities Act, 1960.

THE CHARITY COMMISSIONERS FOR ENGLAND AND WALES HEREBY
ORDER that the following Scheme be approved and established
as the Scheme for the regulation cf the above-mentioned
Charity:-

SCHEME.,

1. Administration of Charity. - The above-mentiomned
Charity and the property thereof specified in the schedule
hereto and all other the property (if any) of the Charity
shall be administered and managed subject to and in
conformity with the provisions of this Scheme by the body
of Trustees hereinafter constituted.

2. Vesting. - The land specified in the said schedule
is hereby vested in the Official Custodian for Charities
for all the estate and interest therein belonging to or
held in trust for the Charity.

3. Investment of cash. - Sums of cash at any time
belonging to the Charity and not needed for immediate
working purposes shall be invested in the name of the
said Official Custodian unless the Charity Commissioners
otherwise direct.

824-24-5-73

Page 15



OBJECT,

4, Object. - The object of the Charity shall be the
preservation and exhibition to the public of the building

on the said land as z place of architectural and historic
interest.

TRUSTEES.

5. Trustees. - The body of Trustees shall consist
when complete of four competent persons appointed by the
Council of the Citv of Bath. Except at first as
hereinafter provided each appointment shall be made for
a term of four years at a meeting convened and held ]
according to the ordinaryv practice of the council. The
chairman of the meeting shall cause the name of each person
appuvinted to be norified forthwith to the Trustees or their
clerk. The person appointed may be but need not be a
member cf the council.

6. First Trustees. - The following persons shall be
the first Trustees znd subject to the provisions
hereinafter contained for determination of trusteeship
shall be entitled te hold office as appointees of the
council for the follewing periods respectively:

George Albert Comer, of Thorncroft,
37 Upper Oldfield Park, Company
Director, and
George Durant Kersley, 0.B.E., T.D., M.D., M.A.,
M.B., B.Chir., F.R.C.P., M.R.C.S., M.Sc.,
of 6 Circus, Medical Practitioner, both
in the City of Bath,
both for four vears from the date of this Scheme;
Mary Elizabeth Rawlings, of 60 Great Pulteney
Street, in the said city, Spinster,
for three vears from the said date;
Frederick Ernest Gilbert, of 124 The Oval,
in the said city, Retired-Steremany

for two years from the said date.

824-24-5-73

Page 16



- 3 -

7. Declaration by Trustees. - No person shall be
entitled to act as a Trustee whether on a first or on
any subsequent entry into office until after signing
in the minute book of the Trustees a declaration of
acceptance and of willingness to act in the trusts of
this Scheme.

8. Determination of trusteeship. - Any Trustee who
is absent from all meetings of the Trustees during a
period of one vear or who is adjudged bankrupt or makes
a composition or arrangement with his or her creditors
or who is incapacitated from acting or who communicates
in writing to the Trustees a wish to resign shall cease
thereupon to be a Trustee.

9. Vacancies. - Upon the occurrence of a vacancy the
Trustees shall cause a note thereof to be entered in their
minute book at their next meeting and shall cause notice
thereof to be given as soon as possible to the council.
Any competent Trustee may be re-appointed.

MEETINGS AND PROCEEDINGS OF TRUSTEES.

10. Meetings of Trustees., — The Irustees shall hold
at least one ordinary meeting in each vear. A special
meeting may be summoned at any time by any two Trustees
upon four days' notice being given to the other Trustees

of the matters to be discussed.

11. Quorum. - There shall be a quorum when three
Trustees are present at any meeting.

12. Chairman and voting. - At every meeting the Trustees
present shall appoint a chairman. Every matter shall be
determined by the majority of votes of the Trustees present
and voting on the question. In case of equality of votes
the chairman shall have a casting vote whether he or she
has or has not voted previously on the same question but
rno Trustee in any other circumstances shall give more than
one vote.

824-24-5-73

Page 17



-~ -

4
i3. Minutes and acccunts. - & minute book and books
of account shall be provided and kept by the Trustees.
Statements of account in relation te the Charity shall
be prepared and transmitted to the Commissioners in
accordance with the provisions of the Charities Act, 1960,
except if and in so far as the Charity is excepted by
order or regulations.

i4. General power to make regulations. — Within the
limits prescribed by this Scheme the Trustees shall have
full power from time to time to make regulations for the
management of the Charity and for the conduct of their
business including the summoning of meetings, the
appointment of 2 clerk, the deposit of money at 2z proper
bank and the custody of documents.

LETTING.

15. Letting. - The Trustees may grant to the Mayor,
Aldermen and Citizens of the City of Bath a lease of the
said land and building for a term of 21 years at a vearly
rent of £1 which shall contain a provision for the
preservation, repair and maintenance of such building by
the lessees and @11 usual provisicns subject nevertheless
to the condition that such land and building shall be
appropriated and used by the lessees for purposes not
inconsistent with the object of the Charity which
purposes may include use as a museum of costume.

APPLICATION OF INCOME.

16. Expenses of management. — The Trustees shall first
defray out of the income of the Charity all the proper
costs, charges and expenses of and incidental to the
administration and management of the Charity.

17. Application of income. - Subject to payment of
the expenses aforesaid the Trustees shall apply the income
of the Charity in furthering the object of the Charity.

Page 18



%

R

=N e
GENERAL PROVISION.

18, Questions under Scheme. - Any question as to the
construction of this Scheme or as to the regularity or the
validity of anv acts done or about to be done under this
Scheme shall be determined by the Commissioners upon such
application made to them for the purpose as they think
sufficient.

SCHEDULE.

Land containing 730 square vards or thereabouts
situate in the City of Bath with the building thereon
known as 4 Circus being the land comprised in a conveyance
made the 3rd August 1961 between Frances Georgina Cooke of
the one part and The Mayor Aldermen and Citizens of the
City of Bath of the other part.

Sealed by Order of the Commissioners this 5th day

of December 1973.

L.S.

824

Page 19



Page 20



	Agenda
	7 Frances Georgina Cooke Charity (4, The Circus) -  Appointment of Trustees
	Frances Georgina Cooke CC Scheme


